ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 15, 2004
1:40 p.m

TAPE(S) 04-17
MEMBERS PRESENT
Senat or John Cowdery, Co-Chair
Senat or Thonmas Wagoner, Co-Chair
Senat or CGene Therri aul t
Senat or Ceor gi anna Lincoln
Senat or Donny O son
MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
SENATE BI LL NO. 384
"An Act relating to a natural gas pipeline with a term nus at
t he Cook Inlet Basin."
HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 384

SHORT TITLE: ROUTE OF NAT GAS Pl| PELI NE FUNDED BY RR
SPONSOR('s): TRANSPORTATI ON

03/ 31/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 31/ 04 (S) L&C, FIN

04/ 06/ 04 (S) TRA REFERRAL ADDED BEFORE L&C
04/ 15/ 04 (S) TRA AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

M5. MARY JACKSON

Staff to Senat or \Wagoner

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented the sponsor statenent for SB 384
on behal f of the sponsor.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 15, 2004



MR. M CHAEL HURLEY

Seni or Conmerci al Anal yst

ConocoPhi | I'i ps Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified there was no opposition to SB
384.

MS. VEENDY LI NDSKOOG

Director of External Affairs

Al aska Rai |l road Corporation (ARRC)

PO Box 107500

Anchor age, AK 99510- 7500

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions pertaining to SB 384.

MR. BILL POPP

G| and Gas Liaison

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports the CS to SB 384.

MR. ROBERT VALDATTA

Stranded Gas Committee

Sewar d, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 384, expressing the desire
to bring additional natural gas to the Kenai.

MR. TOM BROCKS

Chi ef Engi neer

Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC)

PO Box 107500

Anchor age, AK 99510- 7500

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Regarding SB 384, offered a brief overview
of the Railroad s right-of-way.

MR. HAROLD HEI NZE

Al aska Natural Gas Devel opnent Authority (ANGDA)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on SB 384, enphasizing the
i nportance of getting gas to the Cook Inlet area.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-17, SIDE A

COCHAIR THOVAS WAGONER called +the Senate Transportation
Standing Comrittee neeting to order at 1:40 p.m Present at the
call to order were Senators Lincoln, dson, Co-Chair Cowdery and

Co- Chai r Wagoner. Senator Therriault arrived while the neeting
was in progress.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 15, 2004



"#SB384
SB 384- ROUTE OF NAT GAS PI PELI NE FUNDED BY RR

The conmittee took up SB 384.

M5. MARY JACKSON, staff to Senator \Wagoner, presented the

sponsor statenent. She testified that there are two nechani snms
that have been discussed this session for funding a gas
pi pel i ne: Stranded Gas Act and ANGDA. A third nethod is

bondi ng through the Alaska Railroad Corporation (ARRC). Last
year HB 267 passed and authorized the ARRC to issue bonds for a
natural gas pipeline from the North Sl ope. The authority was
for a maxi mum of $17 billion. It was |oosely constructed so
there was no Ilimtation on the nunber or timng of the
i ssuances. The ARRC was given the authority to negotiate with
the producers with one or nore entities as they saw fit. Co-
Chair Wagoner spoke with the CEO of ARRC about that authority
and the possibility of constructing a gas line to the Cook Inlet

Basi n. The result of that conversation is SB 384. The bill
anends the |anguage that was approved |ast year to specifically
reference the route to the Cook Inlet Basin. The purpose of

specifying that route is to focus on the need for natural gas to
the Cook Inlet Basin. The Cook Inlet Basin serves the nmajority
of the residents in Alaska, and they need gas for hone
consunpti on. The electrical wutilities and the petrochem cal
industries in the Basin need the natural gas.

CO CHAIR CONDERY noved to adopt the CS for SB 384 [l abeled 23-
LS1847\H, Cook, 4/7/04] as the working docunment for purposes of
di scussi on.

CO CHAI R WAGONER asked if there was any objection. There being
none, it was so ordered.

M5. JACKSON acknow edged the intent was not to spend $17 billion
on one pipeline route, but rather that one of the routes should
be in place at sone point, within the bonds approved by the
Railroad Authority to serve the Cook Inlet Basin. Regarding the
question as to whether or not a route to the Cook Inlet is a
reasonabl e consideration, she referred to a map from over 10
years ago, Denali Pipeline’s route from the North Pole to the
Cook Inlet Basin for a [product |ine]. She enphasi zed that the
route is possible, “It’s there,” she said.

CO CHAIR CONDERY referred to the new language in the CS, |ines
[9 — 11], “except that a portion of the pipeline nust follow the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 15, 2004



Al aska Railroad right-of-way from the Gty of Fairbanks to the
pipeline terminus at the Cook Inlet Basin.” He asked about the
Rai | road’ s right - of - way.

M5. JACKSON said she had the same question; the terminus is
where the pipeline connects to the existing pipeline.

CO CHAIR WAGONER said the termnus is in the “Mat Valley” and
woul d be where the 20-inch line cones over from Beluga - where
those two would intersect with the Railroad — one could tie in
there, back-feed gas back into Cook Inlet, or on through the
system

CO CHAI R CONDERY suggested the need for further clarification

SENATOR CGEORA ANNA LI NCOLN asked if the map [in the conmttee
room was the sanme as that included in the commttee packet.

M5. JACKSON said the naps were simlar. She referred to both
maps and pointed out Alaska Railroad s rights-of-way, the joint
pi peline fromthe North Sl ope.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the larger map and asked where the
right-of-way for the Railroad and the right-of-way for the
pi pel i ne were | ocat ed.

CO CHAI R WAGONER responded that currently, there is no pipeline
right-of-way, but there is a Railroad right-of-way and also an
inter-tide right-of-way for the power line that runs from the
Mat Valley to Healy.

M5. JACKSON pointed to the black line on the map, the term nus
to the Cook Inlet Basin; that is the existing pipeline going to
t he Cook Inlet.

CO CHAIR COWNDERY asked about the existing truck Iline and
pi pel i ne.

CO CHAI R WAGONER responded that the existing pipeline comes from
the Beluga gas field and intersects with the 20-inch line. “You
can feed back through the Beluga area over into the North Kena

area. O you can feed around this way into the Anchorage Basin.
From Anchorage there are two gas lines that Enstar has that cone

down towards Sterling and over. It nmakes a full |oop, is what
it does, after it intersects with that 20-inch line. But that’s
in the future.” Basically, it is possible to run a spur Iline

from the Fairbanks, North Pole area to Anchorage. He noted that

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 15, 2004



it’s been stated on the public record several tines by one or
two individuals that it’s inpossible, but said, “If you |ook at
this map real close, the power |ine does not go through the
Healy Canyon where the Railroad has all the trouble with the
Shal e sli de. It bypasses it. And therefore it elimnates the
probl em of going through the national park. Because you can by-
pass the national park quite easily. It’'s already been done
It is a very feasible route.” 1It’s close to the sanme nunber of
mles if there is a spur line - if the natural gas line did run
to the border and then into Canada - it’s about the sanme nunber
of mles as it would be to run the spur line from Delta to
A ennall en and around. It would probably have fewer problens
with the EIS and permtting because rights-of-way have already
been permtted for wutility lines and there is the Railroad
right-of-way to work with, he expl ai ned.

CO CHAI R WAGONER added that Gary Hartley (ph), who lives in Salt
Lake City, was a sub-contractor for Tesoro G| when Associated
Pipeline Contractors designed this pipeline (he pointed to a
full package of the design). This pipeline was designed 10
years ago when the <conpanies of Tesoro and Wllians were
involved in joint discussions of shipping the product between
the refinery in North Pole and the refinery in N kiski because
of Wlliams’s limted ability to process a certain portion of
the crude that ran through the plant. Tesoro had a nore refined
process and was going to bring that product down and ship back
the other product in the Kenai. That didn't cone about, but it
shows that it is very possible to put a line into that corridor
They’ ve al ready pre-engi neered and designed it, he stated.

SENATOR CGENE THERRI AULT read the new | anguage, “except that a
portion of the pipeline nust follow ...” referred to the smaller
map, and asked about the gold colored [line].

CO- CHAIR WAGONER explained this shows the current Iline as
proposed by ANGDA into Valdez. The red |line to the west is the
spur line into Cook Inlet Basin. This map shows the different
routes, although it doesn’t have the route to the border.

SENATOR THERRI AULT asked if any of these routes would be
avai |l abl e.

CO CHAI R WAGONER replied yes.

M5. JACKSON poi nted out that the black, yellow, and maroon |ines
are currently ANGDA-aut horized. The red line is not authorized.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 15, 2004



SENATOR LI NCOLN asked about the bridge, and questioned if this
woul d interfere with the proposed Kni k Arm Bri dge.

CO CHAIR WAGONER said no, that there’s a 20-inch pipeline, a
hi gh- powered pressured line that’s already in place that cones
ar ound. It starts from the south. There’s a line that cones
f r om Bel uga.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked about the fiscal note.

M5. JACKSON said she had spoken with Steve Porter about the

fiscal note. She pointed out that this is an anmendnent to a
neasure that was passed last year that had a fiscal note; she
had copies of the bill and the fiscal note fromlast year.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if that bill had passed.
M5. JACKSON sai d yes.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked if that would be sufficient to cover the
addi tional spur.

MS. JACKSON said she didn’t know but suggested that the neasure
that passed — and this could be debated - was all-enconpassing.

The bill authorizes the issuances of wup to $17 nillion in
revenue bonds to pay for 70 percent of the construction based
upon current estinmates. The Railroad would bear no liability,
have no responsibility for re-paynent. The fiscal note, done by
the Railroad Corporation, has FY 2006 as its first inpact year -
$163,000 in costs — to be offset in revenues that would be re-

cooped through the sale of the bonds. She suggested there would
not be a fiscal note on a portion of a route that had already
been approved.

SENATOR LI NCOLN asked how this would interact wth ANGDA

M5. JACKSON said it would not.

CO CHAI R WAGONER added that eventually, it coul d.

M5. JACKSON agreed that could occur in the future.

CO CHAIR WAGONER pointed out that in the future, ANGDA nay get
together with the Railroad and work out a mnutual agreenent
regardi ng construction. All this does is define that there is a

route. It’s just another alternative to bring gas into Cook
I nlet. He enphasized that Cook Inlet is the only manufacturing

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 15, 2004



site for natural gas product currently in the state. There are
two manufacturing units: Agrium producing amonia and urea,
and ConocoPhillips that produces LNG There are currently
problenms with gas reserves in Cook Inlet and with maintaining
the necessary |evel of production to keep those plants
oper ati ng. Possibly in 2009 or 2010, there will be a need for
addi ti onal gas supply.

MR. M CHAEL HURLEY, Seni or Commer ci al Anal yst W th
ConocoPhi Il l'i ps Al aska, testified t hat t he conpany, in
conjunction with BP and Exxon Mobil has been working on
comercializing North Slope gas resources via a pipeline from
the North Sl ope, down the highway route, through Canada and into
the Lower *48. This bill helps to insure that the potential

benefit from the Railroad financing not be limted in any way.

“Whether it’s our conpany and our partners, or whether it’s an
i ndependent gas pipeline conpany, there is potential for the
Railroad bonds to bring benefits to the project to help the

econom cs of that project. W would like to encourage the
committee to nmake sure that there’'s flexibility in how those
bonds can be used.” He said he couldn’t comment specifically on

the CS but thought that nore flexibility in Railroad bonding
would be better for the project and for the opportunity to
commerci ali ze stranded gas.

SENATOR DONNY OLSON asked if there was any opposition from M.
Hurl ey or who he represents relating to SB 384.

MR. HURLEY confirmed there was no opposition. He added that the
thinking is that it's appropriate for the state to maintain
flexibility and to use Railroad bonds in whatever way works to
nost effectively comrercialize the gas.

CO CHAIR CONDERY asked if/when this project goes forward, would
the use of Railroad bonds need the Legislature’ s approval, even
wi th the passage of SB 384.

MR. HURLEY said he wasn’t sure but perhaps the legislation from
a year or two ago may have provided for that ability.

M5. VEENDY LINDSKOOG, Director of External Affairs for the Al aska
Railroad Corporation (ARRC), testified that she believed the
aut horization was put in place last year, and this would just
anend that authorization to include a potential portion of a
pi pel i ne.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 15, 2004



COCHAIR COWNDERY said this was why he had brought up the
guestion on the CS; maybe the |anguage should be broadened so
that there wouldn’t be probl ens.

CO- CHAIR WAGONER said the bill would be held over and that could
be done.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to M. Hurley's prior testinony of
wanting to ensure that there was flexibility and also stating

there was no objection to the bill. She pointed out that the
bill as amended says, “a portion nust follow” She asked,
regarding the CS, if Conoco has reservations about the

| egi sl ati on as presented.

MR. HURLEY said the CS says “nmust” and that causes concern, but
if it is going to be re-worded to be nore flexible, this would
be better and nore in the state’s interest.

MR. BILL POPP, G| and Gas Liaison for the Kenai Peninsula
Bor ough, spoke in support of the CS, while also recognizing
there would be additional wordsmthing. Support is for the
concept to bring gas down the Railroad corridor, the Railbelt to
the Cook Inlet Basin to address long-term energy needs for 70
percent of the state’s population residing along the railbelt
and relying on 85 percent of their electrical power being
generated by natural gas turbines. This is a significant issue
for the Cook Inlet Basin and Kenai Peninsula Borough and wll
have |ong-term inpacts if nethods and neans are not identified
to help support the construction of North Slope gas being
brought to the Cook Inlet Basin. As Co-Chair \Wagoner referenced
earlier, a substantial portion of the state’'s val ue-added
industry for the petrochem cal industry is based in the N Kkiski

industrial site in the Kenai Peninsula Borough. That site
represents 65 percent of the enploynent of the state’'s
petrochem cal wor ker s. Two of t he maj or enpl oyers,

ConocoPhillips and the Agrium Nitrogen Plant, rely specifically
on a plentiful supply of reasonably priced gas to maintain
oper ati ons. Their vision is not only to maintain those
operations but also to help to expand operations within the Cook
Inlet Basin - not necessarily within the Kenai Peninsula Borough

but throughout the Basin - to take advantage at nonetizing and
getting val ue-added products generated from North Sl ope gas that
could be brought to the Cook Inlet Basin. This would take

advant age of the transportation hubs |ocated here, the railroad,
the port, airport, and so forth. Al so, the long-term economc
health of the Basin hinges on natural gas. He wurged the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 15, 2004



commttee to pass the bill to assure the energy future of the
Cook Inlet Basin.

2:08 p.m

CO CHAIR CONDERY asked if he had a copy of the CS and received
confirmation that he did. He said it would probably be
appreci ated and beneficial if M. Popp could work with staff on
t he wordsm t hi ng.

MR. POPP responded it would be a privilege.

MR. ROBERT VALDATTA testified fromthe Stranded Gas Commttee in
Seward in support of M. Popp's idea of the Kenai Peninsula
bei ng serviced on natural gas. He said that 10 - 15 years ago,
Seward applied for permts, and Enstar was going to build a
natural gas line but it did not naterialize. They are still in
favor of that, but also have good harnony with the Railroad, so
by bringing natural gas through the Railroad, or through
permtting in the future, either way they hope the natural gas
| ine comes down the Kenai so that enough gas is there to support
Seward’s future endeavors. He said they would work with M.
Popp on these issues.

CO CHAI R WAGONER announced he would close this portion of the
heari ng. He asked if there was anyone else wanting to testify,
and received no response. He asked if Tom Brooks was on-1i ne.

MR. TOM BROOKS, Chief Engineer with Al aska Railroad, offered a
brief overview of the Railroad s right-of-way from Fairbanks to
Anchorage. Basically the Railroad has a 200-foot-w de right-of -
way from Fairbanks to Cook Inlet Basin. It’s continuous and
generally the Railroad has exclusive use of that right-of-way.
The Denali Park area is an exception, as that right-of-way is
restricted to the traditional uses that have been enployed, i.e.
railroad and communication |ines. Those were the uses under
federal ownership. Generally the Railroad’'s title for a right-
of-way is in good shape for a pipeline with the exception of the
park service and the Healy Canyon. That has been identified as
having slide areas and shales, and that area is a priority for
reconstruction. Beyond that, the right-of-way and railway
engi neering standards are conpati ble with pipelines.

CO-CHAIR WAGONER said when he talked with Pat Ganble before

going to the Energy Council in Washington D.C., he nentioned to
the Congressional delegation that a package would be provided

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 15, 2004



showi ng where the gas |line would supposedly bypass the part in
t he Healy Canyon.

SENATOR LINCOLN referred to the CS, the Al aska Railroad right-
of -way from Fairbanks to the termnus at the Cook Inlet Basin,
and asked if testinony was that the Railroad has no objection to
utilizing that right-of-way in the manner as stated in the bill.

MR. BROOKS confirned that was correct.

CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if the high pressure, 20-inch gas line
comng out of the Beluga field intersects with the Railroad
ri ght-of-way at any pl ace.

MR. BROOKS said there are high pressure gas lines in the right-
of-way but said he didn't know if that particular gas Iline
intersects the right-of-way or not. He said he believed it
cones pretty close, if it doesn’'t intersect.

CO- CHAI R WAGONER said he could check into this with Enstar.

SENATOR LI NCOLN referred to the CS and asked M. Heinze if there
was concern with any overlapping that may occur, or funding that
may bring this in question regardi ng ANGDA.

MR. HAROLD HEINZE, Al aska Natural Gas Developnent Authority
(ANGDA), testified that he was in Anchorage with Steve Porter
and that wunfortunately he did not have a copy of the CS but
wanted to enphasize the inportance of getting gas to the Cook
Inlet area, as this would inpact the energy and heating bills of
about half of Alaska' s population. He estimated that about $100
mllion of disposable incone per year is at stake from that one
sector of the econony, and he supports anything that would get
gas to Cook Inlet, and to tidewater so it could be available to
other parts of the state. The second point is that as a public
corporation, ANGDA has |ooked at a variety of financing to help
projects for getting gas up the North Slope. He rem nded
menbers that this Railroad bonding capability is unique as it
was aut horized through an act of Congress. He noted care needs
to be taken regarding whatever the general tax rules are. He
reflected, as soneone in the private sector responsible for sone
major pipeline - in sonme cases near the railroads or railroad
right-of-ways — that when the decision is made to lay a |ong
length of pipeline on the railroad right-of-way, there are
safety considerations for both the railroad and the pipeline.
He said he hopes the |anguage would allow for the alignnent of
things to be in parallel but necessarily in the right-of-way,

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 15, 2004



which at tinmes may be a very narrow juncture, and there are
safety concerns. There have been issues in the past where
rail roads and pipelines have interacted and generally everybody
| oses when that happens.

SENATOR LINCOLN said in looking at the maps that were presented
by the Denali Pipeline Project and in consideration of where the
railroad is at the optional route and the proposed pipeline
route, it varies on each page; she said she couldn’'t judge the
di stance regarding whether it goes off of that 200-foot right-
of -way. The language is very specific that it nust follow that
right-of-way through that whole area from Fairbanks to Cook
Inlet. She said she was sure that is the part Co-Chair Wagoner
woul d be |l ooking into, as to where it doesn’t intersect.

Co- CHAI R WAGONER confirmed this would be addressed. He told M.
Hei nze they would send hima copy of the prelimnary engineering
study and the nmap.

MR. HEINZE said he thought there was a copy available at the
Joint Pipeline Ofice, which is where his office is. He
suggested that the Joint Pipeline Ofice be included in the
di scussion of exact alignnment because of their expertise in
pi peline safety and transportati on.

CO CHAIR WAGONER said M. Porter would be contacted regarding
fiscal notes.

CO CHAI R CONDERY asked M. Brooks if the Railroad has rights-of-
way greater than 200-feet.

MR. BROCKS responded that rights-of-way are generally 200 feet,
and that in some areas there are reserves that exceed that, but
generally it is 200 feet.

CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if wthin the 200 feet, “you're not
always in the center of the right-of-way with your tracks, are
you?”

MR. BROOKS replied, “CGenerally we are but there are a few places
where we’ve re-aligned or done other things that put us slightly
askew fromthe exact center.”

CO CHAIR WAGONER asked if there were any other questions. He

t hanked people for their input and announced that SB 384 woul d
be held in commttee.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 15, 2004



There being no further business to conme before the commttee,
Co- Chair Wagoner adjourned the neeting at 2:25 p.m
#

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 15, 2004



